
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Licensing Sub Committee-Alcohol 

and Gambling 
 

Meeting date:  2 October 2024 

 

Meeting time:    4.30 pm 

 

Meeting venue: Council Chamber - Municipal Offices 

 

 
 

Membership: 
Councillor Dilys Barrell, Councillor Angie Boyes, Councillor Simon Wheeler and 

Councillor Dr David Willingham 

 

 
 

Important notice – filming, recording and broadcasting of Council 

meetings 
 

This meeting will be recorded by the council for live broadcast online at 

www.cheltenham.gov.uk and www.youtube.com/user/cheltenhamborough.  The 

Chair will confirm this at the start of the meeting.    

 

If you participate in the meeting, you consent to being filmed and to the possible use 

of those images and sound recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 

If you have any questions on the issue of filming/recording of meetings, please 

contact Democratic Services. 

 
 

Speaking at Licensing Committee  
 

To find out more about Licensing Committee or to register to speak, please click 

here or contact Democratic Services. 

 

Please note:  the deadline to register to speak is 5.00pm on the day before the 

meeting. 

 

http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/
http://www.youtube.com/user/cheltenhamborough
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/mgGeneric.aspx?MD=mgattendinglicensingcommittee


 

Contact: democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Phone:    01242 264 130

mailto:democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk


 

Agenda 
 

 

1  Election of Chair   

 

2  Apologies   

 

3  Declarations of interest   

 

4  Determination of Application for a Premises Licence  (Pages 5 - 30) 

 

5  BRIEFING NOTES   

 

6  Any other items the Chairman determines to be urgent and which requires a 

decision   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Settebello   

 Page 1 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Licensing Sub Committee – 2 October 2024 
 

Licensing Act 2003: Determination of Application for a Premises 
Licence 

 
Settebello Belgrave House Imperial Square Cheltenham 

 
Report of the Head of Public Protection 

 
1. Introduction  
1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) allows applicants to apply for a premises licence at any 

time. In this case, an application was received on 13.08.2024 from FGLT LTD in respect of 
Settebello, Belgrave House, Imperial Square, Cheltenham, GL50 1QB.  A copy of the 
application is included at Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 The applicant has requested for a premises licence to permit: 

 
Supply of Alcohol    Every Day 10:00 - 02:00  
Performance of Live Music   Every Day 23:00 - 02:00  
Performance of Recorded Music Every Day 23:00 - 02:00  
Late Night Refreshment  Every Day 23:00 - 02:00  
 

1.3  A representation was received from the Environmental Health’s Environmental Protection 
Team and the application must therefore be referred to a Licensing Sub-committee for 
determination. 

 
1.4  Implications 

1.4.1   Legal The legal background is contained within the body of the report.   
 
The decision of the sub committee can be subject to an appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of its decision. 
 
One Legal 
E-mail: legalservices@onelegal.org.uk  

 

2. Application (Ref. 24/01380/PRMA) 

2.1 Applicant: FGLT LTD 

2.2 Agent:  Berkeley Consultancy 

2.3 Premises: Settebello, Belgrave House, Imperial Square, Cheltenham. 

2.4 Steps to promote the four licensing objectives that are identified in this application:  

 Adoption of a Challenge 25 policy for alcohol sales. 

 Membership of the town wide radio scheme for licensed premises. 

 Adoption of a drugs policy. 

 A risk based approach for arrangements relating to live music. 

Page 5
Agenda Item 4

mailto:legalservices@onelegal.org.uk


Settebello   

 Page 2 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

 Sound levels will be at ambient level. 

 Notices asking customers to be respectful to neighbours in terms of minimising noise 
when leaving the premises. 

2.5 In addition, the applicant has agreed a number of conditions with the police attached at 
Appendix 2 of this report. 

3. Consultation – Responsible Authorities 

3.1 A representation was received from the Environmental Health’s Environmental Protection Team: 

In relation to 24/01380/PRMA, Settebello, Belgrave House, Imperial Square, please find the below 
from Environmental Health.  

The application includes the below:  

 Live and recorded music: 23:00-02:00  

 Late night refreshments: 23:00-02:00  

 Sale of alcohol: 10:00-02:00  

 Opening hours: 09:30-02:30  

However, given the nature of the premises, I would propose that the below times are better suited, 
and would be in line with nearby businesses too.  

 Live and recorded music: 23:00-00:00  

 Opening hours: 09:30-00:00  

 Additionally, TENs could be utilised for times where extension of the licensable activities may be 
required. 

3.2 An attempt at mediation was unsuccessful in finding a compromise between the Environmental 
Health Officer and the applicant’s agent.  The Environmental Health Officer supplemented the 
above with the following, following the unsuccessful mediation: 

Thank you for sending this over, we have now reviewed the applicants response for the premises 
licence application reference 24/01380/PRMA. Environmental Health will continue to be in the 
positioning of putting forward the following hours: Live and recorded music: 23:00-00:00 Opening 
hours: 09:30-00:00 As detailed by my colleague in previous correspondence, given the nature of 
the premises the times proposed are in our view better suited as well as being in line with nearby 
businesses too. Should the premises require additional opening/trading times, these could be 
covered by set regular non-standard timings e.g. new years eve. Additionally, TENs could be 
utilised for times where extension of the licensable activities may be required.             

4. Local Policy (December 2020) 

4.1 The objective of this policy is to: 

a) promote the four licensing objectives; 

b) ensure that the premises are appropriate for their proposed use; 

c) ensure the premises layout and condition is acceptable for the proposed use; 

d) ensure that the premises are being managed responsibly; and 

Page 6



Settebello   

 Page 3 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

e) promote the policy vision statement. 

4.2 In determining a licensing application, the overriding principle adopted by the authority will be 
that each application is determined on its merits. Licence conditions will be tailored to the 
individual application and only those necessary to promote the licensing objectives will be 
imposed. 

4.3 The authority will also have regard to wider considerations affecting the residential population 
and the amenity of the area. These include littering, noise, street crime and the capacity of the 
infrastructure.  

4.4 Each of the four objectives is of equal importance and will be considered in relation to matters 
centred on the premises or within the control of the licensee and the effect which the operation 
of that business has on the vicinity. 

 Public Nuisance - Measures to limit nuisance  

4.5 The authority will expect applicants to set out in their operating schedules the steps taken, or 
proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising from the operation of the 
premises.   

4.6 Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks will be 
managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting a few people living 
locally as well as major disturbance affecting the whole community. 

4.7 Applicants will be expected to have included measures in their operating schedules that make 
adequate provision to: 

a) restrict the generation of noise within the premises and from activities associated with the 
premises in the vicinity, or from an open air site; 

b) limit the escape of noise from the premises or open air site; 
c) restrict noise emissions to below levels that could affect people in the vicinity going about 

their business, at work and when at home both while relaxing and while sleeping; 
d) minimise and control noise from customers arriving at the premises, or open air site outside it 

and departing from it; 
e) minimise and control noise from staff, contractors and suppliers and their activities; 
f) minimise and control noise from vehicles associated with and providing services to the 

premises or open air site and their customers; 
g) determine whether people standing or sitting outside premises are likely to cause obstruction 

or other nuisance; 
h) whether the premises are under or near to residential accommodation; 
i) the hours of the sale of alcohol in open containers or food for consumption outside the 

premises; 
j) measures to make sure that customers move away from outside premises when such sales 

cease; 
k) measures to collect drinking vessels and crockery, cutlery and litter; 
l) the extent and location of areas proposed to be set aside for the consumption of food and 

alcoholic drink and for smoking; 
m) whether there is a need for door supervisors to prevent or to control customers congregating 

in outdoor areas to smoke, consume food or drink (whether supplied from the premises or 
not). 

n) adequate measures to prevent the following arising from the proposed licensable activity that 
may cause disturbance to people in the vicinity: 
 

 litter, smells, fumes, dust, smoke, or other emissions; 

 street fouling; 

 light pollution. 
 

Page 7



Settebello   

 Page 4 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

4.8 The role of the authority is to maintain an appropriate balance between the legitimate aspirations of 
the entertainment industry and the needs of residents and other users of the town including 
businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors. 

4.9 Playing of music can cause nuisance both through noise breakout and by its effect on patrons, who 
become accustomed to high sound levels and to shouting to make themselves heard, which can 
lead to them being noisier when leaving premises. Other major sources of noise nuisance are 
vehicles collecting customers, the slamming of car doors and the sounding of horns. These noises 
can be particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise levels are lower. 

4.10 Where relevant representations are received, the authority may attach appropriate conditions to 
licences, necessary to support the prevention of undue noise disturbance from licensed premises. 
Where premises remain open after 23:00, the licence holder will be expected to provide facilities 
which are relevant to controlling noise and the patrons of those premises late at night. The 
authority also expects that premises which produce noise generating licensable activities are 
acoustically controlled and engineered to a degree where the noise from the premises when 
compared to the ambient noise level will not cause undue disturbance. 

4.11 The provision of tables and chairs outside the premises, either on the highway or on private land, 
and the provision of beer gardens, can enhance the attractiveness of the venue. It can have the 
benefit of encouraging a continental style café culture and family friendly venues. However, late at 
night, tables and chairs and beer gardens can cause significant public nuisance to residents whose 
homes overlook these areas. 

4.12 The ‘smoke free public places’ legislation in July 2007 has led to an increase in the number of 
people outside licensed venues. Where outside facilities are provided the authority expects 
applicants to provide details in their application of: 

 the location of open air areas; and  

 how the outside areas will be managed to prevent noise, smell, or obstruction and nuisance to 
neighbours and the public. 
 

4.13 Licensees and their staff are expected to have sufficient measures in place to prevent such 
problems arising including a suitable litter and waste management program to ensure that the area 
outside the premises is kept free of litter at all times. 

4.14 Where the authority receives relevant representations, or where a responsible authority or an 
interested party seeks a review, the authority may consider imposing conditions to improve the 
management of the outside area or prohibiting or restricting the use of these areas in order to 
promote the public nuisance objective. 

4.15 Conditions may include maximum noise levels over particular time periods, the installation of 
acoustic lobbies, provision of signs, publicity and dispersal policies. 

4.16 A pool of model conditions has been has been prepared and individuals preparing operating 
schedules are at liberty to use these conditions, or volunteer any other measures(s) to promote the 
licensing objectives.   

Policy Section 6 - Integrating Strategies & Specific Policies 

Core Hours for Licensable Activities 

4.17 The authority will avoid arbitrary restrictions on licensing hours that undermine the principles of 
flexibility and consideration of each application is on its own merit.   

 
4.18 The authority believes that licensable activities carried on within the core hours set out below will 

generally not have a harmful impact on the licensing objectives, address the concerns raised by 
local residents and businesses and are less likely to attract representations. 

 

Page 8



Settebello   

 Page 5 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

4.19 Furthermore, earlier closing will result in less alcohol consumption and drunkenness and would 
also be consistent with the ability to get crowds dispersed from the town centre. 

 
Table 1: Core Hours for Licensable Activities 

 

Type of premises Commencement Hour 
No earlier than 
 

Terminal hour 
No later than 

Off licence  09:00 23:00 

Restaurants 10:00 01:00 

Theatres, cinemas 
and other 
performance venues 

10:00 00:00 

Pubs/Bars/Nightclubs Town centre1  
10:00  
 

 
03:00 

Local Neighbourhood Areas 
10:00 

 
00:00 
 

Takeaways n/a 04:00 

 
4.20 Where relevant representations have been made, it will take the following matters into 

consideration when making a decision. These are not a definitive list and other matters may be 
considered: 

 
a) Operating schedules - demonstration of compliance with management standards to support 

each of the licensing objectives. 
 
b) Proximity to residential accommodation - the likelihood of the operation to have an adverse 

impact on the peace and quiet of local residents. 
 
c) Potential noise and nuisance from people leaving and entering the premises.  
 
d) Ability to demonstrate that systems in place to ensure timely dispersal of customers away 

from residential areas. 
 
e) Use of external areas for carrying out the licensable activities and potential noise impact on 

local residents. 
 
f) Proposed hours of the licensing activities and general opening times for the public – The use 

of winding down periods to enable more efficient dispersal. 
 
g) Type of use – alcohol led premises such as pubs, bars and nightclubs, off licenses and hot 

food take away premises are more likely to be associated with crime and disorder and public 
nuisance than other premises such as seated restaurants, theatres, cinemas and other 
cultural activities. 

 
h) Availability of public transport to assist in the timely dispersal of customers from the vicinity 

and to ensure safe travel home. 
 
i) The potential for contamination of the street environment through increased litter and other 

pollution of the streets by customers. 
 
4.21 The hours of existing licensed premises will remain unchanged unless there are good reasons, 

based on the licensing objectives, for restricting these hours, and then they can be changed by a 
licensing sub-committee following a review of the premises licence. 

                                                
1 As defined in Appendix D. 

Page 9



Settebello   

 Page 6 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

 

5. National Guidance 
 
5.1 Guidance has been issued under Section 182 of The Licensing Act 2003. 
 

5.2 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority must 
‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This Guidance is 
therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this Guidance cannot 
anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as licensing 
authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may depart from it if they have good 
reason to do so and can provide full reasons. Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an 
appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts 
when considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision taken. 

5.3 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which must be 
addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. 

5.4 The licensing objectives are: 

a) The prevention of crime and disorder; 

b) Public safety; 

c) The prevention of public nuisance; and 

d) The protection of children from harm. 

5.5 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives, so that the 
promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times. 

The role of responsible authorities 

5.6 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new applications. While 
all responsible authorities may make representations regarding applications for licences and club 
premises certificates and full variation applications, it is the responsibility of each responsible 
authority to determine when they have appropriate grounds to do so. 

5.7 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it is likely 
that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main source of advice in 
relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police have a key role in managing the 
night-time economy and should have good working relationships with those operating in their local 
area5. The police should usually therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on 
matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any 
responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the 
licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities 
must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible authorities carefully, even 
where the reason for a particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a 
particular objective may not be immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all 
responsible authorities to ensure that their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they 
would be subject at a hearing. 

Hearings 

5.8 Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities and others, such as local 
residents, who may be affected by the application before formulating their applications so that the 
mediation process may begin before the statutory time limits come into effect after submission of 
an application. The hearing process must meet the requirements of regulations made under the 
2003 Act. Where matters arise which are not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may 
make arrangements as they see fit as long as they are lawful. 

Page 10



Settebello   

 Page 7 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

5.9 There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made representations 
to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in reaching more informed 
decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local authority have made 
representations on an application, a single local authority officer may represent them at the hearing 
if the responsible authorities and the licensing authority agree. This local authority officer 
representing other responsible authorities may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer 
is acting as a responsible authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the 
licensing determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented 
by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process.  

5.10 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps 
considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that have given 
rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A responsible authority 
or other person may choose to rely on their written representation. They may not add further 
representations to those disclosed to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on 
their existing representation and should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and 
practicable limits. 

5.11 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall 
interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate weight to: 

 the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

 the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties; 

 this Guidance; 

 its own statement of licensing policy. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives 

5.12 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a 
case-by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or objections that have 
been received from responsible authorities or other persons, and representations made by the 
applicant or premises user as the case may be. 

5.13 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. 

5.14 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. 
While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve 
the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential burden that any condition would impose 
on the premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable 
activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
However, it is imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 
determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside 
those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should 
consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of the business. Further 
advice on determining what is appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is 
provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based on 
an assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the 
determination. 

Public nuisance 

Page 11



Settebello   

 Page 8 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

5.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through representations, to 
consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of 
conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore 
important that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on 
persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises 
which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, 
light pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

5.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not 
narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include in 
appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of 
other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also 
arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is 
prejudicial to health. 

5.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the levels of 
noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring 
that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are not permitted in 
garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation 
of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be 
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in 
circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any 
conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, 
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing 
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that 
are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to 
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues. 

5.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the area of 
the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers are engaged, licensing 
authorities should be aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns 
raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be appropriate. 

5.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should normally 
focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for people being 
disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning when residents in 
adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a 
need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain 
circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate 
to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave. 

5.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting outside premises 
which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise to light pollution 
for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to 
balance these issues. 

5.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding  the premises, these are matters for the personal 
responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in antisocial behaviour is 
accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to 
impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to 
place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, 
or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, 
and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night. 

        

Page 12



Settebello   

 Page 9 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

6. Licensing Comments 
 

6.1 The committee must determine this application with the view of promoting the licensing objectives.  
Members can do whatever they consider appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
noting that each objective is of equal importance. 

 
6.2 The committee is also required to have due regard to the statutory guidance issued under s.182 of 

the Licensing Act 2003 and the authority’s Licensing Policy Statement – relevant extracts of both 
refereed to above. 

 
6.3 With this in mind, and taking into account this report and the evidence it hears, the committee can 

resolve to: 
  
6.3.1 Grant the application as applied for; or  
6.3.2 Grant the application with amendments the committee considers appropriate for the promotion of 

the licensing objections; or  
6.3.3 Refuse the application. 
 

6.4 In considering this case, officers make the following comments: 
 

a. Whilst all four licensing objectives are of equal importance, the principle objective relevant 
to this application is the prevention of public nuisance. 

 
b. The authority’s statement of licensing policy provides guidance to applicants on measures it 

should take to mitigate the impact their applications and operation on public nuisance.  
These are outlined at paragraph 4.7 of this report.  Members should refer to these steps 
when considering the impact and mitigation of this application on the promotion of the 
licensing objections. 

 
c. The committee should also be mindful of the core hours as outlined in the policy statement.  

For restaurants, the policy’s terminal hour is no later than 01:00. At 4.20 of this report, the 
policy includes guidance for the committee on decision making where this part of the policy 
is not adhered to and drawn relevant representations. 

 
d. The statutory guidance makes clear that responsible authorities are considered experts in 

their respective field.  As such, the committee should attach appropriate weight to the 
objection from the Environmental Health Officer who is a responsible authority under the 
2003 Act. 

 
e. Members are reminded that, as a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to 

focus the hearing on the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing 
objective or objectives that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying 
into undisputed areas. 

 
f. The statutory guidance provides the committee with broad discretion to consider what 

constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to prevent it based in the individual 
merits of the application. 

 
g. The statutory does however provide general guidance stating: 
 
h. “Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not 

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include 
in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public 
nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and 
insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.” 

 
i. Upon considering all the evidence before it, the committee can decide to: 

Page 13



Settebello   

 Page 10 of 10 Last updated 24 September 2024 

 

 

 Grant the application as applied for; or  

 Grant the application with amendments the committee considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objections; or  

 Refuse the application. 
 

Background Papers Service Records 

Report Author  Contact officer: Mr Louis Krog 
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



Authority Details ReferenceCheltenham Borough Council
PO Box 12, Municipal Offices Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 1PP
T: 01242 262626
E: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Form Title

New Premises Licence

Premises Details

Premises Address *
SETTEBELLO, BELGRAVE HOUSE IMPERIAL SQUARE 
CHELTENHAM GLOUCESTERSHIRE GL50 1QB

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic value of premises. * £ 37500

Applicant Details

I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the 
premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence 
as:

a person other than an individual -as a limited company/
limited liability partnership

Applicant Details

If you are applying as a person described in one of the above 
please confirm: *

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which 
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

Other Applicant (Non Individual)

Name * FGLT LTD

Registered Address * WINDSOR HOUSE

BAYSHILL ROAD

Town/City * CHELTENHAM

Page Number 1 / 9

Page 15



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Other Applicant (Non Individual)

County GLOUCESTERSHIRE

Postcode * GL50 3AT

Registered Number (where applicable) 11901879

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, 
unincorporated association, etc) *

PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY

Telephone Number 07799110044

Email * mike.matthews@berkeleyconsultancy.co.uk

Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start? * 12/09/2024

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end?

Please give a general description of the premises. *

BELGRAVE HOUSE IS A SUBSTANTIAL 4-STOREY 
PERIOD BUILDING WITH NEW CONSERVATORY 
LOCATED AT THE NORTH-WEST CORNER OF IMPERIAL 
SQUARE THAT WILL PROVIDE DINING AREAS ON 
THREE FLOORS AND ASSOCIATED BAR AND SEATING 
AREAS.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises 
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend.

Operating Schedule

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? * (Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 
2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) *

CheckboxCheckbox Label
Plays

CheckboxCheckbox Label
Films

CheckboxCheckbox Label
Indoor Sporting Events

Page Number 2 / 9

Page 16



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Operating Schedule
CheckboxCheckbox Label

Boxing or Wrestling

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓ Live Music

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓ Recorded Music

CheckboxCheckbox Label
Performances of Dance

CheckboxCheckbox Label
Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓ Provision of late night refreshment

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓ Supply of Alcohol

Live Music Standard Times

Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of live music. (please read guidance 
note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)

Day * Every Day

23:00

02:00

Live Music

Will the Performance of Live Music take place indoors or 
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)

LIVE MUSIC MAY BE AMPLIFIED OR UNAMPLIFIED AND 
BE APPROPRIATE FOR A FINE ITALIAN RESTAURANT. 
THE TIMING AND FREQUENCY OF PERFORMANCE 
WILL VARY ACCORDING TO CUSTOMER DEMAND AND 
THE PERMITTED HOURS WILL ALLOW FLEXIBILITY 
IN THIS RESPECT. SOUND LEVELS WILL RESPECT 
THE AMBIENCE OF RESTAURANT CUSTOMERS AND 
NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES.

Page Number 3 / 9

Page 17



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Live Music

State any seasonal variations for the Performance of Live 
Music. (please read guidance note 5)

Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend 
to use the premises for the performance of live music at 
different times from the Standard days and times listed? 
(please read guidance note 6)

Recorded Music Standard Times

Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read 
guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)

Day * Every Day

23:00

02:00

Recorded Music

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or 
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details.(please read guidance note 4)

RECORDED MUSIC WILL BE APPROPRIATE FOR A 
FINE ITALIAN RESTAURANT AND THE TIMING AND 
FREQUENCY WILL DEPEND ON CUSTOMER DEMAND. 
THE PERMITTED HOURS WILL ALLOW FLEXIBILITY 
IN THIS RESPECT. SOUND LEVELS WILL RESPECT 
THE AMBIENCE OF RESTAURANT CUSTOMERS AND 
NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES.

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded 
music. (please read guidance note 5)

Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend 
to use the premises for the performance of recorded music 
at different times from the Standard days and times listed? 
(please read guidance note 6)

Late Night Refreshment Standard Times

Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for late night refreshment. (please read guidance note 7) * 
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)

Day * Every Day

23:00

Page Number 4 / 9

Page 18



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Late Night Refreshment Standard Times

02:00

Late Night Refreshment

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors 
or outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)

THE PERMITTED HOURS REFLECT THE USE OF THE 
PREMISES AS A RESTAURANT AND FOR THE SUPPLY 
OF ALCOHOL BUT THE TIMING AND FREQUENCY WILL 
DEPEND ON CUSTOMER DEMAND.

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 
refreshment. (please read guidance note 5)

Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend 
to use the premises for late night refreshment at different 
times from the Standard days and times listed? (please read 
guidance note 6)

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times

Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7) * 
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)

Day * Every Day

10:00

02:00

Supply of Alcohol

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption on premises or 
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 8) *

On the premises

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol. 
(please read guidance note 5)

Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend 
to use the premises for the supply of alcohol at different 
times from the Standard days and times listed? (please read 
guidance note 6)

Designated Premises Supervisor

Page Number 5 / 9

Page 19



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Designated Premises Supervisor

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises supervisor 
(Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form)

Title * Mr

First name * GIACOMO

Surname * BIFULCO

Street address * 110 HONEYSUCKLE AVENUE

SHURDINGTON

Town/City * CHELTENHAM

County GLOUCESTERSHIRE

Postcode * GL53 0AT

Personal Licence Number (if known) 0901800GLPLC

Issuing Licensing Authority (if known) Gloucester

Adult Entertainment

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, 
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use 
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children (please read guidance note 9).

NONE

Opening Hours Standard Times

Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 
24hr format (HH:MM)

Day * Every Day

09:30

02:30

Page Number 6 / 9

Page 20



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Licensing Objectives

Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) 
(please read guidance note 10)

THE APPLICANT HAS SUCCESSFULLY OPERATED A 
PRESTIGE RESTAURANT AND BAR (‘SETTEBELLO’, 
MERCHANTS QUAY, GLOUCESTER DOCKS SINCE 2019. 
THE PREMISES HAVE BEEN FULLY REFURBISHED 
AND CCTV WILL BE INSTALLED. THE ‘CHELTENHAM 
SAFE’, ‘CHALLENGE 25’ SCHEMES WILL BE ADOPTED 
TOGETHER WITH ANY ‘RADIO LINK’ THAT OPERATES. 
THE DPS HAS MANAGED BARS FOR MANY YEARS AND 
ALL BAR STAFF HAVE BEEN TRAINED IN REGARD TO 
ALL LICENSING OBJECTIVES.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

ALL ALCOHOL POINTS OF SALE AND ON-PREMISES 
CONSUMPTION ARE IN VIEW OF STAFFED BAR/
POSITIONS. A COMPREHENSIVE DRUGS POLICY WILL 
BE APPLIED AT THE PREMISES.

c) Public safety

A FULL RISK ASSESSMENT HAS BEEN UNDERTAKEN 
AS PART OF THE REFURBISHMENT OF THE PREMISES 
AND IS CONTINUALLY UNDER REVIEW AND WILL 
BE SPECIFICALLY CHECKED AND ADAPTED IN 
REGARD TO THE ARRANGEMENTS FOR LIVE MUSIC 
ENTERTAINMENT.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

ALL AMPLIFIED MUSIC – RECORDED AND LIVE – WILL 
TAKE PLACE WITHIN THE PREMISES WHICH ARE 
OF SUBSTANTIAL CONSTRUCTION AND INSULATED. 
SOUND LEVELS WILL RESPECT THE AMBIENCE OF 
RESTAURANT CUSTOMERS AND NEIGHBOURING 
PROPERTIES. THE PREMISES ARE NOT LOCATED NEAR 
TO ANY RESIDENTIAL ACCOMMODATION AND ARE 
SITUATED NEAR TO OTHER VENUES THAT HAVE LATE 
NIGHT LICENCES. CUSTOMERS WILL BE REQUESTED 
TO RESPECT OTHERS WHEN LEAVING THE PREMISES.

e) The protection of children from harm

THE PROTECTION SCHEMES WILL BE OPERATED; 
THERE WILL BE NO ‘ADULT’ ENTERTAINMENT AT 
THE PREMISES; CHILDREN ARE REQUIRED TO BE 
ACCOMPANIED BY ADULTS.

Declarations

Declaration Type * Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

Declarations

I have uploaded a copy of the plan of the premises. I have uploaded a copy of the consent form completed by the individual 
I wish to be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand 
that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. Applicable to all individual applicants, 

Page Number 7 / 9

Page 21



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Declarations
including those in partnership which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships I 
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15)

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY 
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT' 'IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 
1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE 
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT 
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY 
UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 
21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH 
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Signature/Declaration of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see Guidance Note 11 &amp; 12). 
If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are authorised to sign/apply. 
When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or 
if I am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and 
that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him 
or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to 
work, if appropriate (please see note 15).

Full Name * MICHAEL MATTHEWS

Date * 13/08/2024

Capacity * Authorised Agent

CheckboxCheckbox Label
✓ Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? * No

Email confirmation

On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below

Forename MICHAEL

Surname /Company Name MATTHEWS

Email * mike.matthews@berkeleyconsultancy.co.uk

Page Number 8 / 9

Page 22



Reference Ref: DSFX1723552972278

Email confirmation

Telephone 07799110044

Page Number 9 / 9

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



a-
6=
E8
IE
dE
a-
P

7921iig 0
ioaa

;-=
?FE
!81
539

m

6.,

='G
!
Ei
@

3
c

@
9.

ts

a.
P
E

o
9_

6o

Aa

!!.
o

q
@o
s

I

a:o
ro

E

a
ilo

i
5

i{ EHt Eig

=a 
:es HE$

€€= =AE 
q*6

EI EBt Egl-i 
TE 

?*F

? s? aa
39APal*<

PSSsCiP
aqiEig=
egae;e3
EdgqS*3
r66 5 sA 6
oq q 6 a q q
5i9os5eoqa.l;9y
e!.9FI
< Ed 9r6

il? =qa**tB;

Itl

I'

!

3

I

3

3

a

KYw

r- la_--J

Page 25



r5
a'
b

EPEI
a1g r
Ftr=
4Eo

=+Bxr

om
F !!.
o6
l!air

@
e.o
il
o
II
E

5
o
9.
b5

ao

g

5

@
@o fo

o

o

+o
ts
D

{

e.aEc?+

BC-"HtI
EFiEiE,EEggi

3P469

3-t g
:?: a
iFE 5

oq

el iEE Esa

Aj IH EEi
'l '"Ei E3ii $E "sfi

E=3f,E

+aHtggg
+H;331P
43saI'IS
;ggFf,sg
aiqBBdE
3fr s i i u;:<-< x qo
- 

=E 
sqP

,;p6qbe -t

3

3

3

3

Pq
Ed

ffi

iitt
ll
rl

l'
s=
'\\l'-

m
z,{
il
6ft-
tr

6\z

a

KYw

1

Page 26



ii zaPl
9o :.9E 6

PB $gqE

-aE lee.i[' ;3 E

b 
=+L+ oc

5

3

En

Fr:lr:

-

B

am
ea
q!

3

a
s

@
e.

il
6-I
E

o
6-
6
!

ooo
q.
q
o

iEs9#

3EE':5
gE$Ea

$ c E{'fr
n Bal;
:*; l
iaE;
s g*a
E-36
: *'q

c
a

II

ao
N

6
N

:4ts
od
6

LiEI
s

to
il
s

i
I

!

z
3
E

agQ g 
="

_qE-.a€ E
gE+E3;
gEii;
: *e 7
31; *
EEE !
aSfE

dq

Eg 
gEA 

EE;

AeegEEIi
lq 4gq is:-9 3Ee :6{

e 6a : 
=a

= 
Eg t;!=; ?s 4Ed *: Y-3.5ri

F55g9rg+93;Y*=
+H +F8i p
3iof,6-'€
9594:4i
i 6 

= 
o-t #6

5 *E s ;#.4
EiqiHdH
di.r q :; E o
:<<ijlaa

't i: cqA

de6B:
,gc

a

M'FY
Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



a. A log (electronic or written) shall be kept at the premises to record all refused sales of alcohol for 

reasons that the person(s) is, or appears to be, under 18 years of age. The log shall record the date 

and time of the refusal and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. If in written 

format, the DPS will sign and date the book each time it is checked ensuring that it is kept up to date. 

The book shall be made available for inspection upon the request of a duly authorised officer of the 

Licensing Authority or Police. This log will be retained for a period of 12 months on a rolling basis.  

b. An incident log (Electronic or written) will be kept which will include the date, time and details of 

incident that has taken place. If in written format, the DPS will sign and date the book each time it is 

checked ensuring that it is kept up to date. The book shall be made available for inspection upon the 

request of a duly authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or Police.  

This log will be retained for a period of 12 months on a rolling basis.  

c. The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) shall ensure that all Staff concerned in the sale of 

alcohol are trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003, particularly concerning 

drunk sales, underage sales and proxy sales. Training will include challenging every individual who 

appears to be under 25 years of age and to refuse service where individuals cannot produce 

acceptable means of identification, and using the refusal register. Such training (including any 

refresher training) will be logged and provided not less than every twelve months. The training log 

shall be made available for inspection by Police and “authorised persons” immediately upon request.  

d. A CCTV system will be in operation and recording when the premises is open and licensable 

activities are taking place.  Recorded images shall be retained for a minimum period of 28 days (14 

days for digital systems). The CCTV system shall  

be maintained in good working order. CCTV images will be provided to the police and other 

responsible authorities if requested as soon as practicable.  

e. The correct time and date will be generated onto both the recording and the real time image 

screen f. Any person left in charge of the premises must be trained in the use of any such CCTV 

equipment, and be able to produce CCTV images to an officer from a responsible authority upon 

request.  

g. There will be no dancing within the premises when licensable activities are taking place.  

h. On Fridays, Saturdays a minimum of 1 dedicated SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed 

at the premises between 19:00 hours until closing time. A record shall be kept showing their names, 

SIA badge number and expiry date, and the date and time that they were employed and signature. 

The door company details the company trading name and business address will also be recorded.  

i. New Year's Eve, Bank Holiday weekends (Friday and Saturday), Cheltenham March and November 

race meeting day’s should remain with door supervisors being on duty from 19:00 until close at the 

rate of 1 per 100 occupancy (or part thereof) and subject to a minimum of 2 door supervisors. A 

record shall be kept showing their names, SIA badge number and expiry date, and the date and time 

that they were employed and signature. The door company details the company trading name and 

business address will also be recorded. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Determination of Application for a Premises Licence
	Settebello - Appendix 1a
	Settebello - Appendix 1b
	Settebello - Appendix 2


